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WIGAN 1878-1978

In 1878 when the Public Library {irst opened its doors, Wigan
was a thriving industrial town. [ts recently paved streets were
lit by gas, and the main [orm of transporl was usually horse
powered. The people living in the town were employed in

the coal mines or cotton mills, or in the iron and stcel

making or engineering works.

The illustrations on the following pages show something ol
how th¢ town has changed and developed over the past
hundred ycars, and 2 little too of the Hibrary’s history.



! A Victorian view of Standishgate. The Royal Hotcel to the
right of the picture is where the Woohvorth’s siore is now
sited.




An carly photograph showing a coroner of the Market
Place prior 1o the opening of the new Market Hall in
1877.




Victorian Wallgate, the Dog and Partridge pub and
Parish Church prominent [eatures as they are today.




The Market Place in the 18807,



King Strect in 1892, almost disappearing [rom sight in a
steam 1ram.




The Horseshoe ITnn, 106 Mhiligate, when this photograph
was taken around 1892 the licensee was Giles Westhead.
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Market Placc and Millgate, 1889, before Statton Road was

made.



Another typical Victorian ‘local” pub, this time in Scholes.
The Harp Inn around the end of the last century,
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Wallgate. | Wigan.

Wigan by the 1870°s was connected 10 Manchesier,
Liverpoo! and Southport by the L & Y Railway, whose
passenger station in Wallgate is shown here.
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This photograph is of the bridge in Wallgate to the
London and North Western Railway Station, from where
onc could travel to London and the South, or to the North
and Scatland via Preston.
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A new mcthod of public transport appeared in Wigan when

the Wigan Tramway Co. Limited began a horse-drivwn tram
service on the 30th October, 1880. These were rapidly replaced
in 1883 by stcam trams. William Wilkinson ot Holme

Foundry, designed and built a sicam (ram widely used in
Wigan and other northern towns. Above a local sicam tram
built by Kitson Co. ol Leeds.



Mesnes Park upcuctl m Aupust, 1878, shm't]y after 1he
library. This view of the Mesnes befare the Park had been
made would probably have been lamiliar 1o many Wiganers,
especially perhaps those who worked at Rylands Mill shown
in the backuround.



The Royal Albert Fdward Infirmary was opened by the then
Prince of Wales in 1873 and was named after him. This
ilustration is one artist’s impression.



."t’l‘a' 4
| 128 »Jdod..?m

The Market Dall opened in 1877, designed by a Mr, ] Hunter.
I cost £16,000. Prior (o this there had been market stalls in

Halluate, Standishgaic and the Market Place.

———



The new Town Hall was to be a familiar sight until 1t was
demolished {or street improvement in 1882, Built in 1720-3
at the expense of the two local M.P.’s of the time, when this
photograph was 1aken in the late nincteenth century the
bottom par1 of the building was occupied mainly by butchers
shops.



The other Town Hall in Wigan in 1878, when the library
opened, was in King Sureet. This had been built between
1866-7 and housed the Borough and Police Courts, Council
Chambers, Fire Brigade Station and the municipal insignia.
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On October 16th, 1877, Thamas Tavlor, a lucal cotton
spinning mill owner, presented the Free Public Library
building to Wigan town. It was, apparently, a great day.
Shops, offices and banks clused carly. The strects along
which a procession, including Mr. and Mrs. Taylor, the

Mayor and Councillors, the Rifle Volunteer band and
teachers and lecturers from the Mining School were to

pass, were decorated with bunting and mottoes. At the spectal
platform crecied at the Grammar Schaool Crofis, an
illuminated address was presented 1o Mr. Tavlor.
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Following this therc was a banguct at the Public Hall, which
had been specially decorated by Meck and Sons al Wigan
with {lags, bunting and mottoes, and from the gallery the
diners were serenaded by Mr. Goodwin’s String Band.

On the 6th May, 1878, the Mayor, Councillors and

people of the town gathered at the library at 8.00 p.mn. to

sec the public acceptance of the books bought from

Dr. ].T. Winnard's bequest. An illuminated address was
presented to Mrs. Winnard. At 4.00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 71h,
the library opened its doors to the public and by 4.30 p.m.
was thronged with people.

‘1 Photograph of the Original Address
15 an the following pages.
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/ The firsi annual report of the librarian shows just haw busy
the library was, and how universal its appeal.

WIGAN FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY.

Report of the Eibrarian.
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To the Commitee of the Wigan Free Public Library.

GaxTeesEN, —I hava the honour to present uy Report for the year 18:8.

The Institution wos opencd on the Tth of May, and the Report therefare
relates o & peciod of sight months only. The delaila contained in tho
tables mpponded will show tho oxlent ta which the Library has heen apprecinted
by the inbabitants of the Borongh ; and it will be & rource of gmtitication to
knaw that in this reapect the career of the Wipan Librry comporrs excerdingly
faveurnbly with the carly history of other Libraries of o liko nature.

The boaks purchoaed by means of the muniticent licquest of the Jate Jr,
Winnard hava now been amanged end shelved ; a first entalogue of Lhe
Lending Library has been issued, and 420 copics #0ld; the cataloguiog of
the Referenco Library hoa been commenced. The Referonce Depariment
conlaine 15,300 valumes; it hos been open o the public 202 daya, during
which time 5,086 worka hnve bheen consulted. The Lending Deprriment,
which ocontaina 6,808 volunce, has slro been open to the public 202 days,
during which time 42,174 volumes have been jmaucd to barvawers  The
number of ticksis isseed to borrowers ia 3,407, and the weekly avernge of
insucy s 1,240,

' The Newsroom has hitherlo certainly proved tho mnat poyulor hmneh
Y of the building, and mora expeciolly aince the placing there of tha amall
Library, acceasible without any restriction whatever, except (hat the baoks
!} may not be {aken out of tha rcom. 8o far tho Nawsrvoow, owing to tho
| limited income at tha dispazal of tho Committee, has been the enly portion of

the Libraty open on Sundaya, and tha avarage sttendance has been 185 | but,
1! through the libarality of Mr. Taylor, the donor of the building, the Referrnco
Library wilt on and ofter Bundey, the 13th inst, also be opened 1o persons
holding specinl tickots issued by the Committec.

I 1 hava tha honour to be, Qentlerman,
| Your most ohedient Hervant,
Hexgy Tervveas FOLKARD.

Januery 16th, 1879,
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TABLE 1.
on of the rolumes consulted in tho Roference Library from May

- he T1h ta Decoraber Jlat, 1878 r—
Cirss A.— Encyclopsedias, Dictionaric, Mogeazines, and Roviewa .. gfg
Crsass B.—Fhilosaphy vas o s
Crasa C.—Theology o L
Cussa D.—Sociology e o = 53
Crass E—Fhilology ... Riat
Crass F.—Ngaiural Seienco e = -;9
Cuass G.—Uneful Arts A 693
Crass H.—Fino Aris e
Crass I —Litzrature - e
Ciass J.—Himary and Biogrphy
5048
TABLE 2

Showing the closs of readers to whom books hove hocn issued in  the
Reforenco Department, from Tth May ta December 31st, 15878 :—

BODXS

READERS, 288U 2D,
ARents o e ase . . 80
Apprentices - - 147
Architects and Surveyors . we 30
Ansistants a8 er . 144
Hakern % ST
Booksellers o] _— - | . 10
Hsot wnd Shoemoakers ,,, o g vee 1T
Braas Finighers 3 » e -2
Ericklayera and Stonemasons 2o ass e T4
Builders : on wed 2
Butchera - o ol N AL
Carpentern gnd Jainets ., 208
Clerka and Book-keepers |, o ... 988
Coachhuildery e : o 33
Chemista snd Dispensera o oot e 13
Colliers = o 885
Domentic Sorvants a. - - - 2
Drapers .. .- . 204

Engincers ous . . - ;GO‘
Factory Operalives N O S St v .
Farwers g ]
Firemen mod Underlaokers »in = . 9
rocers - e 97
Ironworkers o = L 15
beBrers > e aee o
Ladien b .:. ea e A g
Merchants and Manufscturam ) - i . 5
Mowdes and Fittern .. 0 v Tt e 8
Pn_in!eru eod Plumbers |, ‘ w =3 ad %
Pricters od Booktigdon * 1L T 1 %
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] TABLE 6.
Claasification of the ages of borrowern from the Lending Librery.
From 141 to 20 years ... A o :?;I
w 20130 ot
w 30w40 o s
» 40t b0 ¥
Y B0to 60 e
l Above 60 yesrs ... e o . oo e I
Ages nol given, chicfly Tadies "
3407

| LIST OF SOME OF THE MORE IMPORTANT WORKS IN THE
REFERENCE DEPARTAENT.

THEOLOGY.

Acta Sanctorum, quotquat Wte orle coluater ; collegit Joannes Bollandus. 53
volm, folio. Paria, 1863.68.
Baronius {Cardinal), st Raynaldus {O) Annales Ecclesiaatici cum Antondi
Pagii critica, &¢. 38 vala Folio. Luca, 173859
BipLes.—Tha Byble in Englyshe of the largest and greatest volume, Printed
Novembor, 1541. Folio.
Bitlia Sucrs polyglotta, edidit Brionua Waltonug,  §. vols. folia,
London, 16357.
The Holy Bible, edited by Rev, Josiah Foarshsll, and Sir Frederic
Madden 4 vols 4to. Oxfard, 1830
Clark’s Foreign Thealogical Library. 130 vols, 8vo.  Edinburgh.  V.D.
Helyat g‘z Histoire des Ordres dMonastiques, 8 vols, 4to.  Paris, 1721,
Bbligne {L'Abb¢) Patrologiae Cursus completus, &c,, &¢. 35T vala 4to. Paris,
1855.-78. {Complets aet).
Mischns, sive totivs Habrmorum Juris, Rituum, Antiquitatum, &e. Tlustravit
G. Surenbusiva, 6 vole folia. Amsterdem, 1698-1703.
Picart {(B.) Ceremanies et contumca religicuses de (ons les peuples du monde.
10 vola folio. Amaterdem, 1736-43.
Tillemont {Le Nain) Mémoires pour servir A l'histoire Ecclosiastiyue. 16
vols 4o, Pans, 1701-12,

NATURAL SCIENCE.

Agaeniz (L) Relcgse;eg;a sur lea poisscns fowsiles. ¢ vele §to.  Neuchato),

" Hirtoire natyrelle des poimsons d'eay douce. 2 vols. folio.
Neuchatel, 1839.

Astronomical Bocioty's Memoira  dto. ; and Naticen, 8vo, {Complete asts.)

Bloch (W. E) Tchthyologie. 12 volu, folio. Berlin, 1795-97.

Blume (C. L) Flom Javen 4 vola, folio. Hatavia, 182838,
- Rumphis, sive Commentationez Botanice ¢ vols, falio.

Batava, 1835-48.
Chemicsl Society’s Journsl. (Completo set.) 1849.78.
Curtis (W.) Botanical Magazine. 103 vola, 8vo. London, 1793-1877.
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Although some children's books were included in the
lending library, it was not until 1893 that they had their
own library when Sir Francis Sharp Powell, an ALP. {or
Wigan, presented the Powell Boys Reading Room. Girls
were allowed 1o usce the library but it seemis that they were
very much in the minority. The photograph shaws an
carly view of the Powcell Bovs Reacing Room.




The new century saw the death of Queen Vicloria and the
beginning of 2 new era. The South African War ended and
a new King, Edward VIi, was crowned. Photograph

ol a local schowl celebrating these cvents.




Inventions such as the internal combustion engine, and
the greater use of electric lighting, were to have a great
impact on the town. Above the interior af the refercnce
library - nothing very unusual at [lirst sight, the major
difference is that it is now lit by electricity, which was
installed in 1900. The first 23 subscribers 1o the new
method of lighting were paying 7d per unit.
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The new electric generating station provided power for
the latest Corporation owned public transport -
clectric trams. A service was begun in 1901 and by 1906

there were trams going to Martland Mill, Boars Head, Scholcs,

Platt Bridge, Pemberton, Goose Green, Ashlon, Hindley,
Poulstuck, Standish and Aspull. Open deck trams were in
scrvice from 1901 - 1925,



Technical College in Library Sireet. The Callege one ol the
first to be founded in this countvy duted Ivom 1858, the
first lectures being delivered in a room in the Public [all.
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Wallgate in the early years of this century.
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Standishgate around the same period
( obscure caption on postcard says it is Wigan lane)

S s £ M | SRR



T
L Ay

— A e

Pembcrion had become part of Wigan in 1904. Carnegie, the
Scots- American philunthropist, had provided £3,000 towards
the cost of Femberion Library, opened in [907, which
rapidly proved as popular as the Wigan Central Library.



When Andrew Carneigic later visited Wigan in 1909 he was
made a Freeman of the Borough.




Photoyraph taken when King George V and Queen Mary
visited Wigan on July 10ih, 1913, as part of their Lancashire
tour. The Maynr and Mayoress, Alderman and Mrs. .
Dickinson, are waiting to greet them.



was at the time of King George Vs visit

Market Place as it
in 1913,



Wallgate Station zbout the same time the King macde
his visit




In 1914 Britain entered the Great War. Like many other
Wigan men, most ol the male library staff joined the Army,
Navy or the new R.F.C. The library itsclf was insurcd against
aircraft risk. When Wipans fivst Chicf Librarian HLT. Folkard
picturcd above, died in 1916, he was succeded for a bricf
time by Miss Edith Lea, one of rhe {irst women to join

the Library Stafl.



 E——————

Officers of the Wigan Territorials 51h Manchester Regiment,

August 1914,




Wigan Volunieer Corps, Mesnes Park, 1916.

Pcace came in 1918 but there was not to be a new era of
prosperity for the tnwn, The coal and cotton indusiries were
declining in importance. The depression of the 1920's

hit Wigan hard. Although over £1,000,000 was spent by the
Corporation in ncw housing schemes, mocdernising the 1own,
and schemes to attract new indusiry 1o the town, George
Orwell's picturc of Wigan in the 'Raoad 10 Wigan Pier’,
published 1937, was very gloomy,



A new sight in post-war Wigan was the petrol engined buscs
that the Corporation introduaced in October, 1919, on the
Skelmersdale-Wigan ronie. The photographs show one of

the buses that run between Billinge and Orrell from November,
1919,
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In 1922 rthe buses ceased to operale, but a new service wis
caommenced 1o Beech Hill in 1924, using dicscl engined buscs.
Trams disappeared from the Wigan streets in 1931,
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Under the new libravian, A.]. Hawkes, the Cemiral Library
underwent further changes. From the summer of 1920, the
public were able to sclect books from open shelves instcad
of using the cumbersome method of consutting the
catalogue and library indicator.

The peoplc who had been re-housed on the Beech Hill
estale, too lar away 1o visit the Central Library, were,
fram 1938, ahle to use the branch library in Gidlaw School.



May 21s1, 1938, the visit of King George V1 and Queen
Elizalseth. This photograph shows their reception at the
Market Square. The Mavor and Mayoress at that time were
Mr. and Mrs, E. Ball.



In September, 1939, the Second World War broke out.
Rationing of food, clothing, petral cic., became the arder

of the day. Local people, il nol serving in the armed forces,
were involved in essential war work, or with the Home Guurd
or Civil Defence. Patriatic savings drives and fund raising cvents
were enthusiastically supported.

A patrivtic shop window display during Warld War I1.
{(Photograph courtesy of Mrs. M. Blackburn).




The hand of the Gth Scaforth Highlanders on parade on the
Market Square diving War Weapons Week, December 1940,
{Photograph courtesy of Mrs. AL Blackhurn).



Women’s Day, Wigan Warships Weck, 1941 - Munition

Warkers, perhaps [rom 1he R.O.F. factory a1 Beech Hill or
Euxion.

{(Photograph courtesy of Mrs. M. Blackburn).




Market Place, in the 18507,
{(Photograph caurtesy of Mr. S.A. Hall)



Standishgate and Wigan Lane in the 1950'.
{Photograph courtesy of Mr. §.A_ Hall)
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The post-war years saw radical changes in Wigan as it became
the modern town it is today. Areas like Scholes, one of the
oldest parts of the town, acquired a new {ace when re-
development of the arca began in 1962, Abave. Nouglas House,
one of the new blocks of {lats in Scholes.

(Pholograph courtesy of Mr. 8. Hall).



Re-development of the tewn did not only affect housing.
Places like T'owd Arcade, as the lamiliar Market Arcade was
known, was demolished by 1972 and replaced by the present
new shopping precinct.

1‘ (Photograph couriesy of Mr. S. Hall).




Market Place, the entrance to the Commercial Yard, once
an important part of the town it was demolished in 1971 1o
make way lor a new shopping centre.

{ Photograph courtesy of Mr. S, Fall)



Modern Millgate and the new Civie Centre, the first phase
ol which opencd in 1971.




The public swimming baths had been opencd in Wigan in
1882. Above, the new [nternational Pool, opened in 1966.



The Central Library in the post-war vears kept up with
modern trends and new ideas. [n 1952 a travelling library
began to visit the ncw housing developments lacking a

convenient local branch library. Wigan’s first travelling
library.
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In 1961 the long awaited Beech I1ill Hranch library opencd.
AL this time the Central Library was able 10 loan recards
from the new record library, as well as loaning beoks,
{Photograph courtesy of the Wigan Observer).









